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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The visual impact of the South Oakdale landscape is its most outstanding
feature, The area is one of very large oaks, horse chestnuts, sycamores annd
other tree varieties. Entering the district from either the ncrth or south
the impression is one of a tunnel of trees, especially spring through fall
when leafed out. In contrast there is the large lawn open space, with a few
large trees,-of the school commons at the district midpoint. Pedestrian
sidewalks are inside planted parking strips, the two lane street was paved

in 1910, etrer-t arking % a owed 208 the east side, 60\/\"‘* OMKDALE_ ?Dassm-_r,,
N f5  hRCLH %,. WE \l‘ L@Eblb OF REATENTTAL STYLES 4

METFORT L Faou\ THE 19905 4o thue [Nos u»J-P‘\ Z:%o?. oF MATURB. 5T?E~-r—tﬁwba'
Historically from the earllest develorment retalnlng e natural trees

planting street trees, gardens and expansive lawns surrounding the stately

homes have been a major feature of the district. Mcst homes follow a traditional
set back of buildings at the midpoint of their lot, leaving a large lawn area

in front. This har been broken in two ways; first the earliest homes (i.e.

#38, 89, 53, 56) set farther back from the street; secondly, inappropriate
newer construction (i.e. #5, 6, 7, ?3, 24, and 39) have been set too cl~se

to the street.

The South Oakdale District is composed of 59 individually owned tax lotn with
buildings. These are representative of the devedopment of popular archltecfural

~tyles from early Coloni~?1 Revival 1890's to late 1940's evamples, early’ i
bungalows 1905-1920's, with Quren Anne, Tudor Revival and builder's style= gﬁf:&;
also within the district. Primarily a residential area, the district is NES

cnmposed of 43 single family homes, 22 multiple family structures. one chur ~h BuAGAD

coloraL
and rectory, one public school, one profe551onal law office, two cowbined TUCO%
medical offices and residences. The offices and church are grou ed at the

= Vo
SRR B e iRt ST B IR S T T Biom é;"“m‘”.?’i‘zww
At *he north gﬁgb%u$§§§g”2nt4y§2ctlénzg? Oakdai and F”gg;eﬂt is Smme§?§§¥;\-AZCN
rroperty with a small grocery store and parking lot. This is just out=ide EAELW 19C
the nroposed district due to owners wishes. Visually it is an intrusion _. VHCy
(photo enclosed). However, comercial land use historically has existed at >
this cornor with ~n Qa'"dale Market building of some sort since 1900.
Inctitutional land use is represented by the Catholic Chirch since 1908
and the Mid Hish School since 1931, .

" Areas .urrounding the district; To the north of the district a couple blncks
is the major complex of civic buildings in Jackson Cownty, including the
County Courthouse, Public Litrary, new Justice Center under construction,
City Hall and Fe?¢ral Post Office building. Oa’-dale and J. St. between 10th
and 12th, across from the church are compativle, but not included due to
lack of interest by property owners. Both East and West of the street
are residential streets of smaller homes and =maller lots built primarily
in *he 20's-0's, Park St. between Daketa and l1lth has many historically
significant homes on it, but also is not included due to objections from
some of the owners. Immediately south of the district is n new subdivision
development of tract houses currently under construction. Orchards werv here
until recent years. Stewart Ave. bisecting S. Oakdale at the south eand -~f
the Aistrict is a major traffiec arterial.

U 0™ ENURY  SRuTRA NEIGISD DRSO THE-. TAST, St § wees
B CRLheR O |



MAJOR BIBLIOCGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

MEDFORD MAIL TRIBUNE issues of January 1, 1928, May 20, 1928, 1933 issues
January 1 through August, October 30 19¢/, January 23, 1977

see continuation sheet
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

-
i

The southern boundary of South~Cakdale Historic District is bound by Stewart‘ ‘
Avenue., Going north from Stewart, the east boundary follows the east edge
of tax lots 8400 and 8200, a jog following north edge of 8200 to the alley,
then then alley behind Oaklawn Addition Block #1 acts as the boundary behind
tax lots 7400, 7500, 7600, 7700, 7800, 7900, and &000. The boundary jogs
see continuation street
LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE CoDE COUNTY CQoE
STATE \ coDe COUNTY CODE
§3]FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TiTLE
Vicki Anne Bryden, District Resident
ORGANIZATION ' - DATE
South Oakdale Neighborhood August 30, 1978
STREET & NUMBER ' TELEPHONE
1009 South QOakdale Avenue 503-779-4695
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Medford Oregon 97501

ESTATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION
THE EVALUATED SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE STATE IS:
NATIONAL ____ STATE__ LOCAL ___

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1968 (Public Law 89-665), !

hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been svaluated according to the
criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.
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Portrait and Biographical Record of Western Oregon” Chapman Publishing Co.
Chicago, 1904 (at SOSH Library, Jacksonville Museum)

Polk City Directory, Jackson County 1911, 1912, 1914
Polk City Directory, City of Medford 1930, 1937, 1942, 1946, 1950
1911 and 1912 SOSH Library, Jacksonville Museum
1914 personal copy Elizabeth Barry, 615 S. Oakdale, Medford
' 1930-1950 copies, Medford Public Library

Contemporary Authors, Gale Re-earch Co. Book Tower, Detrnit, Michigan,
Volumne 9-10, 1904 (Medfor? Public Library)

Local Articles, papers etc,

npfter 62 Years Still Goin, Strong, Rogue River Valley University Club,
A History 1910-1973" by William ¥. Aldrich, printed booklet owned
by University Club Members, Medford.

"History of Medford", by Jan Snedicor, 1935, on file at 30HS Library,
Jacksonville Museurm, Jacksonville, Cregon )

"History of the Rogue Valley Fruit Industry" by C.B. Cordy, 1977, osU
Extension Service, oan file 30HS Library, Jacksonville Museumnm

"History of the Rogue Valley Pear Industry", by Ferne Kellow,~late 30's,
filed at SOHS . Liorary, Jacksonville Museunm.

The following MeAdAfor< residents were_interviewed'personally or by phone
during the summer of 1978. :

Elizabeth Applegate Barry Joe Naumes

Gerivieve Wortman McCorkle Ot+o Frhnmayer
- Susan Deuel Robinson Bob Keeney

F.K. Deuel Jr. Louise Clark Patterson
Norris Porter Laura Drnry Porter
Pearl Fehl Coverdale Helen leavens

Sammye Harris . Col. Bob Emmens

Ruth Warner Calist~ Handwerg
Liberta Lennox Jerry Latham

GPO 892 433
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A definite cycle in upxeep of the district structures can be noted for many
of the properties. During the early years South Oakdale was very important
~ulturally and socially in the community with homes being well kept. As
these people grew older or ‘ortunes were lost during the denression years,

‘unkeer was often not maintained. Manv homes had sections divided off as

small apartments. A few houses became so dilapidated that theyvy were razed
and new apartment buildings have replaced them. (i.e. #5, 7, 9, 24).

The last 10-15 years has shown a reversal to that trend in that many properties
have been purchased by younger families with the intent to restore and upgrade
the property. Apartment partitions were removed in several. Extensive
restoration in keeping with the architectural integrity of the home has been

or is being done (i.et?#l?. 20, 27, 30, 38, 42, 49). The catalyst effect

of some property being redone has spread in attitude througheoihe district.
Restoration done on 1009 by Bryden's was featured in a one and half page
article in the November 28, 1976 Medford Mail Tribune.Théomggain is becoming

a residential center for families active in the community.

INDIVIDUAL DESCRIPTION3 OF PROPERTIES IN ORCER OF MAF CODE NUMBEKS

0. Medford's 2na Fublic School Building (Counselor's Court, 517 W. 10th),
1884, 2 story, 30 x .50 ft., wood frame, horizontal shiplap, 2 story froat
verandah, column posts, block foundation, hip roof, building well kept,
landscape inaprropriate with large parking area, original 1830's porte
chochere on east elevation removed. Earliest surviving public school in
Medford, originally built at 8th and Oakdale (pre'sent Courthouse site)in
Italinate style. 1891 sold to and moved by A.A. Davis to present site.
Remodeled to single family home in colonial motif. 1930's converted to
apartments. 1976 restoration removed partitions to original rooms, present
use as law offices.

1. Sacred Heart Church (Archdioeise of Portland, 326 South Oakdale) 1928
Romanesque Revival, 2 story with clear 2nd story, brick building with concrete
foundation, tile gable roof, front stoop, leaded stained glass, Tr=cery

rose window, bell tower, heavy wood front doors, Well kept structure and
grounds. Designed by B-rrett & Logan, architect firm of Pprtland, sonstructed
by another Barrett brother. Replaced earlier 1908(Mission:style Church of the

- Nativity. Contemporary Parish Hall building to rear of church.

2. Sacred Heart Parish Re~tory House (Archdiocise of Portland, 326 S. QOakdale),

1909, Colonial Revival, 2 story, wood frame, horizontal shiplap, stone rubble

foundation, hip roof, 2 story front portaco with balcony, porch columns,

encdosed screened porch, building and grounds maintained, large paved parking

lot south of structure to lot boundary.

5641Dgél§§;:f-D;.sfgsnocore House(Buono?ore, 510 W llth.o? 358 3. Oakdafiﬁi“ ass
’ ¥y, wood frame, horizontal shiplap sidiag, concrete
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foundation, wood shingle gable roof, front stoop, bay window, well kept building
and grounds. Built by Robert Ke-rey (partner Frank C ark) for Dr. Young at
the SE cornor of S. Nakdale ana 8th st., Medical office was situated with
entrance facing Oakdale ~nd residence section entrance facing 8th. The

< *Dr. Buonocore family lived in it and maintained gractice from it ~everal yars
‘prior to property site being chosen as the location for the new Me for? City
Hall. To accomodate the city, the Buonocores in 1966 cut the structure in )
two parts, moved it 3 blocks and relocated the building at the present site
with the family home facing 11lth and the m~dical office entrance still facing
S. Oakdale. At this time a new 20 ft. middle addition was made where the
structure was rejoined.

4, Judge H.D. Norton House (Stanly & Morse, 408 S. Oak?rle), 1930, combined
Pr~rie Style and Colrrial Spinish Revival, builder Earl Fehl, 2 story brick
~nd stucco, 52 x 48 ft., flat hip tile roof, 2 story re~ntrant cut in porch, ’
leaded glass, south elevation porte cochere, structure and grounds well kept.
Remodeled in 40's to combined single family resiaence (2nd +ory) and ’
professional dental offices (1=t story) with appearance being that of mingle
family residence.

5. Morse Ep-rtments (412 S. Oakdale), 1978, 4 unit, 2 story,'wood frame, plywood
panel exterior, composition gable roof, no yard, front of structure to
street raved parking, intrusion to district.

6. Schipper Apartment (418 S. Oakdale) 1972, 5 units, 2 buildings, one story,
rood frame, composition shingle gable roof, *o setbac«, grounds unkept,
intrusion.

7. Georre Garrctt House (Withrow, 426 §. Oakdale), 1975, Bungalow with
carryover of Queen Anne, 1% story frame, horizontal wood shiplap and shingle
siding, composition shingle gable roof, front verandah with trunkated Obelisks
posts, callows brackets. Rental property with contemp~rary apt. building in
TEaL camaflouged by the older ho%pe. Structure and ~round unkept.

VOLUTION, OF- BURGALOW SNHIE. , SESR TItk OF AR BovF,
8. Earl Fehl Honae (8chenfisch, 504 S. Oakdale) 1900, Queen Anne, 2 story,
frame, horizont~1 shiplap siding, stone and concrete block foundation, wood
shingle gable and hip roo®, wrap around verandah with turned posts, eave
brackets, interfor chimney, out buildings are shed, barn and carriage honse,
single family home, presently rental, structure and erounds maintined.

Home of Historically significant person, Fehl. Possibly moved to this site
from block present Sarred Heart Chﬂgﬁngﬁigg?esTaﬁf&ksiiq:P;P2522>%%avhb¥}gﬁl
A}

Repdebousnt 1312 fxge O RS AN SN - !
9. Mos= Court (512 S. Oakdale) 1965, 9 unit apartment building, single st-ry.
framg¢, not set back, maintained, intrusion.

10. Jim Young House (Rose, 518 S. Oakdale) cl1905, Modified Queen Anne

with later additions, 1% story, frame, horizontal shiplap siding, composition
shingle gable roof, reentrant attached porch, archde, 2and floor French cdewpasz 453
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doors and balcony removed. Presently multiple family rental, structure and
grounds unkept. Adjacent windmill building razed 1978, was high school class
project of the Young brothers in late 30's. eSS FM\\\.\/NO\N P19 ST+

11. Clarence Eads House (Jensen, 522 S§. Oakdale) 1925, Prairie Style Bungalow, .
with oriental motif, 1% story, central pavillion 2nd story, frame, horizonal
clapboard siding, composition shingle gable roof, front verandah with '
trunkated obelisks pos¥s, half timbering, bargebosrds, fancy work in gable,

single family home, architect possibly Frank Clark, with Jim Younq§ contractor.
We]bl é‘i t, EYCETTIONALLY FwWE.  (RaFToned Fam’\RE%-— NoTE THE ELABORSTE. STRUT
J-X3) =

0Bk WRIN THE. GARAES. TVOLUTION, OF THE ONG AL o/ QT“LE .
12. Beeson House (Grembemer, 608 S. Oakdale) 1926, Bingaloid, 2 story, 32 x 55
ft, frame, horizontal clapboard, gable roof, front verandah, trunkated
obelisks posts, leaded glass, full basement, gallows brackets, open stairwell,
well kept structure and grounds with many native plantings. Single Family home.

13, John Dodge House (Leavens, 610 S. Oakdale) prior t~ 1910, Bungalow features,
possibly early farm house with late ¢l910 remodeling, 2 story, 32 x 65 ft,
vertical overlap siding, front verandah, balcony with french doors, open
stairwell, screened sleeping porch, well Kept structure and grounds, single
family home, built by John Dodge for own family.

4. A.B. Cunningham House (Holtzinger, 616 S. Oakdale) 1725, Tudor Revival,
2 story frame and stucco, 47 x 62 ft., covered front stoop, side porch, wood
frame windows altered to metal sash in 1977, single family stru .cture well
kept, grounds maintained.

15. Dillon-Ebel House (Defty, 620 S. Oakdale) 191" Bungaloid, 1} story, frame,
33 x 46 ft, front verandah, square porch posts boxed and grouped, stick

work gable. Built as single family, with several additions including outside
stairs, now owners home plus two rented apartments. Good condition, grounds
maintained.

16. Bungalow (Grimes, 704 S. Oakdale), 1910, 1% story, frame, front verandah,
brick supports, leaded glass, rafter ends cut out. Landscape diminished

by circular front paved drive and parking. Built as =ingle family home, nowW
multiple. Contenmporary fourplex building in rear. Structure maintained.

#17 Harry Tuttle House (Bronson, 706 S. Oakdale) 1905, Italinate with
Bungalow remodeling and porch possibly later additon, 2 story, 32 x 32 ft.,
frame, horizontal shiplap siding, composition shingle flat hip foof, wrap
around verandah, porch posts boxed and grouped, corbelled chimney, widows
walk, square nadl construction throughout, Built as single family home was
for many years apartments and very abused. Since 1971 extensive work restorel
3t to single family, structure well kept, grounds with native 80' Emperor
Celar maintained,

GP) 892 455
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18. H.W. Hamlin House (Shéppard,.710 S. Oakdale) 1927, Bungalow, one story,
frame, corner windows, 30 x 34 ft, Builder W.E. Thomas. Well 'ept and ground=
maintained. Older-carr%aiiuaguse at rear of property seems to match 70%
- next door and orieinallyfdbeen part of that property.
19. Herbtert Grey House (Bogan, 714 S. Oakdale) 1925 bungalow, one story, .
28 x 36 L shape, wood frame. Built by architect Frank Clark and contractor
A.J. Sharp to sell as single family home. Structure well kept and grounds
maintained.

20, 0.0. Alendorfoer House (Howsley, 718 S. Oakdale) 1928, Sp:nish Colonial
Revival, 2 story, frame, stucco, tile roof, wrought iron railing, lentils
over windows with hewn beams, side porch. Architect Frank Clark, builder
Larkin Reynold: for then city mayor as home to entertain in, thus largr
living and dining room areas. Remodeled into apartments in 1937 by same -

architect. Later restored to single family. Ext-nsive maintainance, restor~tio
work down in 1977-78. CRMOINAL  wRoUgHT WIN  (GRILL Weter

1. Prentice Apt, Reddy House (Wright, 800 S. Oakdale) c1700 approx.
Originallv large single family home with large front porch, remoddied 40's
by H. Prentice to apartments. Presently no style, porch removed. Bu'lt
originally by Englishman R. Barker, better known for jew' ler Dr. Red-v
family. Set back, size and large trees make it compatible to district.
Structure well kept, grounds maintained. : :

22. The Cottages (Wright, 511-527 Daknta), 937, reatal cottagns designed
and built by darry Prentice, -lus storage and carport builings. One story
vood construction, st-~uctures well kept, grounds maintained.

23. Duplexe=s (Mansfield, 810 & 812 S. Oakdale and 507 & 509 Dakota),
1857 luplex, 2 story colonial, compatible appearance of large single
family home, smaller single story duplex in rear with Dakota addreess.
Buwyilt by H. Prentice, structure and ground=s well ept.

24, Apartments (Mansfield, 822 S. Oakdale) 1978 Colonial duplex, 2 story
freme, supportive appearnce of single family dwelling with single front
door, new landscaping done with mature plantings. single story fourplex
in rear with parking between the 2 buildings. Dedigned by owner in attempt
to fit Aistrict character. (original 822 Na#h house razed late %f*p)
Os
25. House (Hale, 900 So. Oakdale) 1948 concrete block one story, incompatible
tut not intrusive, has yard space. Maintained.

26. Apartments---Wortman House (Griffin, 912 S. OQOakdale) €1900, maybe

as early as 1890. Originally large 2 story farmhouse, Deuel home prior to

1018 being built, *hen Wortman's until 1944, Remodeled to apt. early 50's

and has newer siding, lost style, but size and lot compatibile. Small caq;gaﬁnugea
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27. Kent House, Early years varied owners (Brian, 922 S. Oakaale) c. 1910
Colonial Revival combined with Queen Anne style, 2 story, 53 x 29, frame,
horizontal siding, eave returns, wrap around verandah with ionic columns,
basement, leaded beveled glass, newer stained glass, small paned windows
over large ones, bay window, rails missing 2nd story balcony, Extensive
maintainance and restoration work dome since 1973. Singk family structure
and grounds well kept.

28. Ralph Bardwell House (Swisher, 1002 S. Cakdale), 1912 California Cibsqsnnﬁgd
Bungalow, one story, 61 x 39 ft., river stone foundation, frame, shingle e
siding, wood shingle gable roof, front vernadah, porch posts sguared, grouped
masonry piers, clinker brick chimney, six glass paned doors open to porch,
interior dark elm wainscoting, one vaulted ceiling. Architect Fran' Clark,

also historic merit in craftsmanship and style. Slight alteration of enclosing
~creened porches in 1960. Single family home and grounds well kxept.

29. Charles English House (Hanke, 1006 S. Cakdale), 1910, bungalow, 1% story,
gable ends to sides, front verandah with oriental motif in porch colunmns,
metal siding, basement, Interior moderately remodeled after 1941 fire.
Screened porches enclosed, fireplace relocated. Single family home well kept,

20, Porter Neff House (Allan, 516 Belmont) clYll, possibly earlier farmhouse
with later remodelingsEKCraftsman style, 2 story, wood shingle siding on upper,
horizontal bevel on lower, expcsed rafters, sandstone fireplace, lattice work,
sleeping porch, 2 story buggy house to rear of house. Presently undergoing
extensive restoration work, grounds surrounded kty high hedge, many large oaks.

kY
"

31, Dr. Elias H. Porter House (Harvey, 1010 S. Qakdale) 1910, combined

Western Stick and Bungalow, 2 story plus attic and basement, 32 x 4& ft., 10 ft.
wide verandah south and east sides, group coluwns, bay window, gallows brackets,
tiny dormer window, trellis entry south side, distinctive chimney. Builder

was Dr. Porter, single family home and grounds well kept.

32, F.H. Deuel Sr. House (Deuel, 1018 S§. Oakdale) 1979 Western Stick and K
Shisgle Style, 2 story, brick lower, dark stained shingle upper, approx.

%0 x 50, porte cochere north elevation, front verandah, Weveled oval glass

front door, 2nd story sleeping porch now enclosed. Ground= with natural
plantings. Merit due to craftsmanship ané style plus significant family who

still owms it. Structure and grounds well kept.

33, Halbert Deuel House (Chaney, 1100 S. Oakdale), 1925, ludor Revival, 1%
stories, 1949 addition, steep roof, architect Orsgon Home Designer's

of Portland. Single Family structure well kept, grounds surr~unded by hedge,
maintained.

GPD 832 455
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4, Th-mas Brndley House (Haberlach, 1108 S. Oakdale), 1939, Later Tudor Revival
or Buflders Tulor Style, 1% story, 28 x 40 8t., steep roof, heavy door with :
leaded glass, partial basement. Designed by Medfor? Lumber Coe., builders

8.0. McCroskey and LeRov Johnson fofr Bradley who was living at 1114 and

wanted a smaller home. Structure and grounds well kept. Screened porch north,
side enclnsed,

35, Dr. Riddell House (Westlund, 1114 S. Qakdale) ¢¥910 Colrsial Revival,
2 story frame, front stoop with 2nd story balcony, 2_story porch columns.
Structure and grounds maintained. ‘\:;1&3“33%1 FTROMT PORTCO WnTH SEoND FLODR2

36, Driscoll Honse (McDonald, 1120 S. Oakdale), 1950, late Colonial
Bungalow, 1% story, 36 x 27 wood frame, clapboard, Designed by Betty Driscoll,
built »y Jnck Batzer., Single family home well kept, grounds with § large

oaks well kept.

37. DelRoy Getchell House (Jensen, 1121 S. Oakdale), 1916 Colonial Revival,

2 story, 62 x 32 wood frame, horizontal shiplap siding, gable roof, brick
stoop across house front, small entry with columns, fan light windows,
storage buildings to rear. Ar-~nitect Frank Clarr. Grounds surrounded by
laurel boxwood hedge, many mature oaks, =ycamore, stately entrance walk

and drive. Single family structure and ~rounds very well kept. Historic =~erit
for both architect and significant community leader.

38. Marshall Hevse (Wright, 1113 S. Oakdale) 1895 Queen Anne, 2 story, dressed
#tone foundation, lower horizontal wood shiplap, upper regular and fancy

cut <hingle, front wrap around verandah with columns, ¢orbelled chimney,

leaded glass windows, newer stained glass, Aec~rative gables and varicd rodf
1ngles, bay window north elevation, interior window seats ﬁogg LR windows,
serarate entry hall with open oak bannister stairwell. Built by J.H. Stewart,
or~hardist and 1908 sold to George Marshall, orchardists=s, mith extensive
surrounding acreage, éart of which was subdivided into Oaklawn Addition.
Historically significant people resided here. Extensive restoration since

1973 has removed apt. on 2nd story. Single family home well kept and very
lares grounds area well kept. HSORC NEN OF Trio bouse 1900 LisTED A

MBS TS Ny FULE. OF THE- S.o.W.5, Ad THE . H. SEWALT HRass,
T RS SN Hew Ru
39. Suturban Ranch House (Jones, 1101 S. Oakdale), 1956, single story, wood

frame and siding, single family home. Built by Nelson Construction. Fairly

compatible, not especially intrusive to district. Structure and ground well
kept, Set too close to street. PosmBlLY THE- SHiTg OF “THE- W INDMUL/ WATE R RAER

FoLTRE. 1R STEwanT Hovss .

40, Annie Keliehor Home (King, 1019 8. Oakdale), 1907, originally 1%

story bungalow, 1950's Boyle family extensively remodeled into full 2 story,
enclosed front porch area, gallows brackets under eaves, small glass panes
at ends of picture window, sguare columns by front door, basement. Single
family home built by George Treichlor. Structure well kept and grounds

maintained.
GPO 3322 455
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Depner Home---early years varied ownership (Depner, 1013 §. Oakdale), 1907

Bungalow, almost duplicate to one next door at 1019. 1% story wood frame, 1950's -
remodeling slightly modifiea style ., Built and living in uantil 1913 by .
George Treichlor, who then built 995 S, Oakdale. Structure and grounds well kept.

42, Marshall-Orth-Drury House (Bryden, 1009 S. Oakdale), 1910 Bungaloid,

2% story, 35 x 50 ft., partial basement, full attic, horizontal lower siding,
wood shingle upper sbry, wood shake hip roof, dormer windows with small

panes over large one, front verandah, square posts, leaded glass and newer
leaded stained glass, 2nd story sleeping porch enclosed, large entry and wide
stairwell, Extensive maintainance and restoration work done since 1970. House
has interesting history of few owners but many significant renters early years,
Devry's owning it 1935-70, ~-iginally built by Wm. Roberts. Single family
structure very well kept, grounds well kept vwith laurel hedgzes on south

and north sides, large oakd and black walnut trees in rear half of lot.

43, J.P. Naumes House (Smith, 1001 S. Oakdale) 1937, Craftsman Style, 1% story,
35 x 59 ft, Fic1ld stone with vertical board and batten on 2nd story, Bable
roof, front stoop with small entry, basement. Architects Frank Clark and

Bob Keeney, builders Joe Naumes and Frank Applegate (#53, 615 S. Oakdale).
Historically significant architect, relates to 30's designs by C.C.C. Naumes
personally hauled stone found county wide. Structure and grounds very well
kep*, hedges on north and south boundaries., THID HOUSE 15 odE OF THREE 14
TE LY, (BATER-LAxe- Ave— § orNeR. OF B-MAR ARD WL , AYE.

44, G. Treichlor--H. Bromley House (McKay, 995 S. Oakdale) 1372 Shingle Style,
2 story, front verandah with stucco columns, originally wrap around verandah,
now partially enclosed. Architect probably Fran« ClLirk. Structure and grounds
nf single family home maintained. .

45. Larry Schade House (Wing and Harms, 989 S. Oakdale), 1776, Tudor Revival,
1% story, wood Shingle siding, original screen porch enclosed, columns on .
small front porch removed, small arched window interest. Structure and grqunds
well kept.

4é. H.A. Thierolf Ho:se (Minser, 907 S. Oakdale) 1936, Colonial Revival,

73 x 34 ft, basement, arched dormer windows, fan light window over front door,
Architect Frank Clark, builder W.D. Peckham. Laurel hedge surrounds back yard,
house =its middle of double lot, many large oaks. Single family home, structure
and grounds well kept.

L7. Medford Senior High School, now Mid High, (School District 549c, 815

S. Oakdale), 1931, 2 story concrete school, »rt deco details. Architect
Frank Clark, builder R.L. Stuart & Sons. lLarge open space of {awn, school
commons, with walkways and west elevation of school face South Oakdale.

West elevation unaltered facade is what is considered important to preserve.
Modification to rear of building have occured over the years. Structure

and grounds maintained.
GPO 292 453
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48, Walter Quisenberry Hous& (Archibald 715, S. Oakdale), 1928 Colonial
Revival, 1% storie~, double bevel wood siding, very steep roof, gallow
brackets suwpports porrh roof, diamond cut out shutters. In 1936 house moved
from lot S to lot 4 to ~ccomodate schocl district. Especially well kept
grounds, ~ative ponderosa pines and black oaks, laurel hedge north boundary.,
Single family structure well kept.

49. Whitman-Harris House (Gates, 707 S. Oakdale) 1395, originally Italinate,
later ~emodeling to colonial revival style. Many changed in compesition

and design over the years. Hip roof. Original part of house appears taller

than ~ide "ith wvertical windows. Set verv far back from street, large grounds
with many large trees well kept, hedge horth and south boundaries. Historically
important as one of oldest houses, built by W-itman who owned extensive

acreage around it, who was community leader, later owned *y high school
principnl.

50. Supportive House (Severson, 705 S. Oakdale) 1947, built by Jack Batzeer,
single story, wood frame and siding, large trees and planting’s fit Aistrict.

51 Blnrod House (Younger, 701 S. Oakdale), 1935, suppnrtive 1% story wood
frame, shake roof, Architect Frank Clark. builder H.W. Hall. Single family
h~me, well kept, crounds maintained.

John
52. Apnlegate House (Helgeson, 519 S. Oakdale), 1947 Supportive 1% story
wood frame and siding, 42 x 29 nlus later dining addition in front, presently
2 family with outside stairs to 2nd story. Lot given to John Applegate by
father next do.r. Structure and grounds mazintained.

53, Applegate House (Barry, 615 S. Oakdale) 1885, Italinate, 2 story,

front verandah with columns. balcony above, set back from street and sits

at slight angle to street., Built by J. Whitman prior to his building 707.
Brught by Thomas Williams in 1903 whc moved the house in 1906 from 511 site
to this location, then 1308 moved it closer to the street. Became '"Applegate"
house when daughter Lida Williams Applegate (Mrs. Frank) and family took
residence, Her daughter Elizabeth Applegate Barry resides there today. Single
family home and grounds maintained. Squarc nail construction in older parts
of house. Historically significant family.

54, Leverette House (611 S. Oakdale) 1927-26, Tudor Revival, 1% story,

arched front entry, decorative panel on brick work in chimney, round windoow,
sweeping roof line, archway for car to drive through, curved walkway. .
Architect D.R. Patrick, builders Patrick and Fry for Realtor -Leverette.
Featured in a 2 pg. story in 1928 MMT as .ultimate new '"model home". Still
owned by original family, structure and grounds well kept.

GPD 392 453
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55. 0.V. Myers House (Rowden, 609 S. Oakdale), 1909 Bungalow, single story,
north side glass doors, double bevel siding, service buildings in rear.
Restoration work done early 70's. Single family home well kept, grounds
with trellis over drive maintained. ’

56, L. B. Warner House (Servoss etc., 519 S. Oakdale), 1895 Queen Anne, -
2 story wood frame, presently in poor condition. Remcdelings have removed
early detail work. Grounds unkept. Historically significant as one of oldest
and important family. Was in Warner family until past yjear. New apartment
units under construction in rear of lot.

57. Wm., Warner House(Warner, 511 S. Oakdale) 1907, Colonial Revival with
several remodelings, 2 story, wood, flat roof on froat addition inappropriate.
Wm., son of Warner at 519, later liveéd in by his son Gordon. Still owned
by Warner family, but for sale. Structure well kept, grounds maintained.

58. Samuelson-VonderHellen House (Smith, 507 So. Qakdale), 1928, Colonial
Revival, 2 story wood frame, exact same house plan as 715 S. Qakdale,
brick worx addition, gallow orakets on porch. Different members of sane
family have owned since 1935. Structure fair, now being worked on. Grounds
.aintained. Built by Big Pine Lumber Co. and Joe Gagnon. N=AZ NURRIB- oS-
OF WOUSE &T 715 S oaruaLd
59. E.H. Hedrick House (Jack, 503 S. Oakdale), 1908 Bungalow, 2 story,
wrap around verandah, leaded windows, native sandstone, end of brackets cut
out, rafter ends scalloped, interior paneled, wood beams, dumb waiter,
windows open on side hinges, original light fixtures. Single family home
well kept and grounds maintained., Historically significant person owned
over 30 years, Hedrick, Me?“ord schools Superintendeant.

GPD 892 455
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The South Oakdale Historic District is an area tnat was very important to
the early development of the community. Despite Medford's relatively late
founding date of 1883, it is one of the oldest areas of town still. somewhat
intact. It contains some of the few remaining early homes of the city, built
in the late 1880's to the early 1900's. Further erosion of this area would
be a loss to the entire community. N '

LAND DEVELCOFMEST

The men who built these earliest homes were all key figures in land }
development of both the residential and business parts of the new town
besides in the new orchard growing industry. Responsible for South Oakdale
development and surrounding streets as a residential area were men who lived
on the street.

On the west side of the street; W.H. Barr, Barr's Addition, lived at the first
structure at 408; John Dodge, Dodge's Addition, at 610; Harry Tuttle «f
Tuttle's Subdivision, at 706; F.K. Deuel, major landowner of the south end,
who gradually sold off parcels; darry Wortman lived at 912 and was developer
of the west side of QCakdale between 1llth and 10th.

On the east side were J. H. Stewart who btuilt 1113 and owned the vast area
around it, selling it to Geor~~ Marshall in 1908 who in turn subdivided 1}
much of the area between Oakdale and the railroad tracks. The bulk »f a
the rest of the district from Barnett to 1llth belongéto either Whitman or
Warner, Lot shapes and sizes are irregular in that section, reflecting the
way they were sold off peicemeal as someone wished to build.

In a 1935 history of Medford, Jane Snedicor wrote "Harry Wortman Sr. was on
the council and he asked that 7th St. be called Main St. and So. J St. be
called Oakdale. When he lived in Rockford, Indiana he lived on QOakdale Ave.
and his place of business was on Main St., so he felt quite at home when

the council decided that he could still live on Oakdale Avenue and do business
on Main St. The name QOaklani naa already been given to the southwest section
of Medford by those who were building there, because of the beautiful oak
trees to be found near the end of the street."
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South Oakdale was the west boundary and 12th the south boundary of the
originally platted townsite. The district being just out of the platted

area. The district had a pastoral feeling with its large grounds around

the homes. Snedicor continues " Even in those very earliest days the people
of Medford were interested in planting trees, shrubs and roses. South Oakdale
was the first street where trees were planted extensively." The street ]
was paved in 1910. Memories of one early resident are of the south end being
thick with scrub oaks and being called '"the forest" bv area children who
rlayed there.

Thomas Williams came from Klamath County in 1903 and bought 615 upon his
retirement from the In-dian Service. He *found work with the city as the
Su-erintendent of City Parks to plan and lay out the Library Park. He
plant=A the trees and was caretaker until his deatn in 1913.

The family aspect of building homes on South Oakdale is interesting. The
elder Warner at 519 gave property to William to build and live next door
at 511 in 1907, The elder Deuel gave his sons lots, one sold his, but Halbert
built 1100 next door to the family home in 1925. Frank Ap~legate at 615
fFave son Joln the Jot to build and live at 619 in 1946. In 1910 Charles
English built 1006, then immediately built 1002 next door for his newly
married daughter, Be~tha Bariwell. George Marshall raised his family at
1113, -on Edison returned in 1922 newly married and bought 1009 to re=side
in. The vcnderHellon *amily bought 507 in 1935 and familx embers still
live there. Members of War:er (since 1895), Deuel (since lB?B), Applegate
(since 1903) and Leverette (since 1928) families still reside in the
original family homes, or rroperties.

Charles English (17°06) and George Treichlor came to Medford together from

North Dakota and were involved up and down the street as land investors,

buying and selling vacant lrts and houses. At one point county deed record
books show the organization of '"Qakdale Land Corp." with English and Treichlor:
principal parties. :

District residents were also involved with downtown property development.
Porter Neff (516 Belmont) was an attorney, but also friends with J.H. Cooley
who had Me<?ford Lusber Co. Together they built the Cooley Building---still
‘n use for theater and offices, the -Jackson Hotel and Holland Hotel (razed
1978) all r~rior to 1920. He »as also one of the signers in the 20's to a
city agreement with Medco to leave them out of the city limits for t=x
purposes---now a controversial issue with setting Medfords urban growth
boundary. .Capt. Nash (822) remodeled the building at Main and Front into 1495
the well know Nash Hotel (burned to ground in 1978 after being clothing
store for 30 years). Emil Mohr (610) had built the Medford Hotel on Main
Street in 1910, prior to residing on Qakdale. He is remembered walking to
work each morning.

GPO 832 455
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ARCHITECTURE

The January 1, 1728 issue of the MeAford Mail Tribune featured a full page
spread "Medford Is A Gity Of Many Beautiful Homes". One photo was a street
view showing the houses at 616, 610 and 604. Another photo showed the
Getchell home at 1121.

The development of different popular residential architecture over the

years is one aspect that makes South Oakdale interesting. Architect Frank
Clark was the designer for many of the homes and the school. He is important
as haying a major regional influence with buildings throughout the valley.

Born in New York in 1873, he began his career in the Fast, moved to California

to work, then moved to Medford early 1900's. &hen in California he reputedly

was greatly influenced by work then being done by Greere and Greene of Pasadena.

"The" architect for Medford, Frank Clark and.associate Bob Keeney (after 1932)

are known to be responsible for the following structures on South Oakdale;
Dr. Bucaocore's (#3) at 510 . 1llth in 1941, #19 at 714 S. Oakdale in 1925,
Alendorfers House (#20) at 718 in 1928 and designed its remodeling into apts.
in 1937, Bardwell House (#2&) at loo2 in 1912, Getchell House (#37) at 1121
in 1916, Naumes House (#43) at 1001 in 1937, Theirolf House (#46) at 907

in 1936, Medford Senior Hig: ochool (#47) at 815 South Oakdale in 1931, #51
at 701 in 1935, and remodeled Warners (#57) at 511. Alsc most likely, but
u~confirmed at this time, he was probably the architect for Eads House (#11)
at 522 in 1925 and Treichlors House (#44) at 995 in 1912. There is an uncoa-
firmed connection with the Deuel House 1018, maybe an involvement with the
original building along with another architedt. Blueprints for 1018 are
still retained, but show no name. .

More research is being done on Frank Clark's influence in the valley by

the staff at the Jacksonville Museum. We do know from his paigner Bob Keeney
and daughter Louise Fatterson that he designed the wellwgnow vSwedenburg
House on the SOSC campus in Ashland. Also in Ashland theJﬁlksw the hospital
and the Natatorium. In Medford he worked closely with schools Superintendent
E.H. Hedrick designing many district schools. de was responsible for some
civic buildings and downtown office buildings along with many of the large

homes on East Main in Medford.

Another much smaller influence was by Realtor Walter Leverette. Known as
dealing in commercial properties he did make an exception and arrange for

the "meiel home" at 611 to be built in 1928 by Patrick and Fry. The May 20, 1928

jssue of the MEDFORD MAIL TRIBUNL devoted almost 2 full pages to the Open
House & AM-8 PM, that day, of the ultimate in efficiency, "Free treatment
of English Design" model hone. Leverette was quoted as saying he would sell
it, however his widow still resides in it. We do not know if his efficient
style was copied elsewhere in town.

GPO 832 4355

.
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The Catholic Church is observing its 50th anniversary date and thus has |
begun to research the church history. At this time we couldn't "ind owut much
about the architects other than it was a Mr. Barrett of Barrctt and Lo~an

in Portland, who was himself a Catholic. Hopefully we will in the near
future discover why the particul.r style was chosen, who the stained glass
artist may have been etc.

ORCHARDISTS

The development of South Oakdale can directly be attributed to the young
men who came to the Rogue Valley in search of wealth as orchardsts, many
already with considerable money to buy property. "The establishment of the
first com.ercial fruit acreage in the Medford area dates back to 1885 +hen
J.H. Stewart, a nurseryman from Missouri, and J.D. Whitman, a friend of
St~wart, came to the valley with their families." recen.ly wrote C.B. Cordy
in a fruit industry history for the extension service.

J.H. Stewart sold his land within the district by 1908. However his early
success influenced the orchardists who followed. In 1890 he shinped the first
carload of fruit out of Jackson County. He took an active part in the
husiness life of Medford. J.D. Whitman, earliest street resident and

shipper of pears helped start the Southern Oregon Fair Association in 1897
and was a member of the board of trade.

George Marshall bnuéht Sterarts large home at 1113 along with his ‘acreage
and orchards in 1908, Living there until the late 30's h¢ was an orchardist
by occupation, also being the subdivider of Oaklawn, Oakhurst and other
adjacent properties. . .

Many others in the district had other professions or businesses but alsc were
orchard owners as shown by listings in early city directories. Amorg them B
were F.K. Deuel (101R%), Dr. E. Porter (1)10), Stuart Patterson (1009),
Relph Ba=dwell (1002), allen Drury (620, then 1009). Maurice Spatz (912)
wss the founder of Crys*al Springs Packing Co. Unconfirmed informatios is
that Harry Holmes of Harry ani David Bear Creek Orchards lived at 912 for
a period. The Waumes family of pear growers built the unique stone house
at 1001 in 1937.

BUSINESS AWD PROFESSICNAL LIFE

South Oakdale had many of the early community business leaders. The Medford
Bank was founded in 1899 with J.H. Stewart as President. Later years John
Orth Jr. (1009) was its casaier. The First National Bank was incorporated
in 1905 with F.K. Deuel (101&) as a director. Later Charles Englisn (1006)
was its Vice President. The Farmer's and Fruit Growers Bank was originated
in 1909 by its owner and President DelRoy Getchell who builv 1121 in 1916.

L.B. Warner, a nurserymsn, came from Nebraska and his children put up th&o ss2 ass
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money to build 519 in 1895. His son William built 511, but moved back ta
519 by 1915. William Warner was president, director and apraiser for
Jackson County Federal Savings and Loan. He also .was Medford Fostmaster for
years, during which time occurred the infamous D'Autrexont train robbery in
Ashland and murder of one of his postal employees. de is said to have been
bitter for years over the way their trial was handled. This same man also
started a family gladiola btulb growing business which continued under his
son Gordon until just a couple years ago. ‘

Merchants from South Oakdale included Wortman, Gore and Warner's large meat
industry and grocery store. F.K. Deuel (1018) was partner in a dry goods,
mercantile business downtown. The jewelry business was represented by Dr. Reddy
(veterinarian, 800) but went bankrupt in 1932. In 1925 Larry Schade, also

a jewelry store owner built 9&9. 0.V. Myers (609) had an auto dealership.

A.A. Davis (517 W. 10th) came to Medford in 1889 and built tne first and
only flouring mill. He was also founder and presideant of the short lived
1904-1907 Crater Lake Railroad Co., also known as Pacific and Eastern.

Tracks to Eagle Point never connected witn the transcontinental as expected.

Other major business connections with South Oakdale were People's Electric
Co. owned by brothers-in-law A.B. Cunningham and 0.0. Alendorfer, who built
616 and 718 respectively in the late 20's. However they went bankrupt around
1932, selling out to employee Ben Trowbridge Sr. Bert Theirolf built 907

in 1936 when a lumber broker owning Big Pines Lumber Co.. Halbert Deuel
(1018 & 1100) wns a partner with brother-in-law Gain Robinson in Valley Fuel
co. Gain and wife (Susan Deuel) later returned to live at 1018. John Boyle
who remodeled 1019 was general manager of Cal-Ore Power Co.

Many residents were well educated professional men, coming from the East

to find their fortunes. At*orney Porter Neff built 516 Belmont about 1911.

He c-»re from Duluth, Minrn. in 1908 and practiced law until 1955. He
originally shared downtown offices with brothers Hawy and David Holme® when
they were new in town. Stuart Patterson, a 1897 Yale graduate came west

to nractice law (also grew pears) renting 1009 from its builder, W.J. Roberts
a -~tate university 1886 graduate and civil engineer. Earl Fehl, carpenter
amongst other professions, reputedly had a law degree by correspondence--=-

he bought 507 in 1914,

The medical profession had Dr. E.H. Porter, graduate of Cinncinati Medical

in 1898, who built much of 1010 personally in 1912. He then moved his wife
and children here from MassachuSetts residing there about 20 years. He built
the Medford Sanatorium, the city's #irst other hospital besides the Catholic
~ne. It was remodeled by Porter in 1921 into Carghill Court Apts. when his
health demanded he cut back his practice. Dentist Dr. Riddell lived at 1114

early years, selling it to another dentist Dr. Elliot.

GPO 392 453
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POLITICS

When Medford incorporated in 1885, one of the original trustees on the city
board was W.H. Barr, Souta Oakdale land developer who's name, witn an

oak leaf logo, is still stamped into the euhtrete sidewalk at the SW corner
~f S. Oakdale and 1lth St.

Three South Oadale residents had the distinction of serving as city mayor. _
May~r Dr. J.F. Reddy served 1907-1908, lived at 800 later. M~v~r 0.0. Alendorfer
~erved 1927-28, during which time he built 718 S. Oakdale as a residence suited
for social entertaining befitting his position. During the years 1940-134%2
Halbert Deuel was Mayor, hmsving grown up at 1018, then building 1100.

Circuit Judge Norton built 408 in 1930 with the house designed to house

his enormaus library. Judge Cruz lived at 707 for many years. Wm. Warner's )
father-in-law Judge Williawm C “vig lived at 519 with the Warners in his later
years. Unconfirmed is that both Judge Kelly and the Justin Smith families
lived breifly at 1013.

The most notorious of South Qakdale's political figures was County Judge
Earl Fehl who's ambitions proved 2is downfall. As a carpenter he bought the
house at 504 in 1914 and was active building in the area, including the
peightoring home of Judge Norton.

In 1919 he bought the VALLEY dERALD, 2nd oldest Medford paper started in 1888.
A weekly paper he renamed it the PACIFIC RECORD HERALD. Editorials were

of a violent nature denouncing the goveranment. At the same time a similar
weekly the DAILY NEWS was published by a Llewelyn Banks. The two joined

and formed an organization called the Good Government Congress with members
paying them dues. '

To try to make a very. long story shor!f, Banks and Fehl masterminded a plan

to get control of the county government which included electing their

cohorts to office. Earl Fehl was elected County Judge and took office Jan. 1, 1935,
The losing incumbent Sheriff demanded a recount which was denied by Judge

Fehl. A suit was filed and awarded to recount, but the ballots were then
discovered "missing". During this same period Fehl and friends were denouncing
his neighbor, the upstanding Judge Norton as incompetent.

Hure front page headlines in the MEDFORD MAIL TRIBUNL, day after day for
6-8 months unfold the story of the ballot theft, discovery of who and now
and finally the arrest and conviction of those involved. For their coverage
of the "scandal" that found its way into papers nationwise, the local pager
received the coveted Pulitzer Prize.

The ballots had been stolen from the county vault February 21, 1933. Stete

GPO 832 455
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Troomer Prescott served warrants on Fehl, then went to serve Banks, who in
turn ~hot and killed the officer. That was March 16. April Banks was on
trial in Eugene and convicted of murder. Out on ba2il Fe»®l openly continued
his freindship with Banks. He arrogantly tried orating stirring speeches to
the Good Government Congrees, but they were finally getting wise ~nd

4igbanding.

Bar! Fehl's trial was held in Klamat® Falls since he claimed he couldn't
get a fair one in Medford. As “he #2 ringleader he was convicted in August
nf 1933 to four years in the state penitentary. He was soon paroled and
returned to live at 504. For awhile he tried to rive inflammatory speeches,
but evidentally didn t go over too well. He planted his front yard with
potatoes during WWII, later was taken to Salem to the mental hospital. Hi=
widow lived there until the late 60's.

SOCIAL

South Oakdale was a very socially active place in its early years. The
residents were active in various city clubs and =ocieties, besides the
personal entertaining done in their homes. .

Many of the men belonged to the Rogue River Valley University Club. Begun
in 1910 and still functioning today, it was a luncheon club and meeting
place for men only. Some of the South OCakdale members were Bardwell (1602),
Prtterson (1/09), E. Porter (1210), Grev (714), H. Deuel (1100), :riscoll
(1120), 71 joining "the" men ~° ;tature from the whole valley. Mrs. Drury
(1009) filled in as club luncheon cook during the mid 1940's. For a

period in the 30's, ‘ue to finances, it combined ,with the "Town Club™ of
voung couples with Hobb and Amy Deuel leaders of that set.

The ladies were also organized. Mrs. Davis (517 W. 10th) and Mrs. E.N. Warner

(519) were 1903 sharter members of the "Lewis and C'ark club"(later to Ho -

ev~lve into the Chamber of Cﬁmmerce) Mrs. \Wortman (91?) and nndoubt:dly
others, belonged to the Ladies Improvement Society, through which each lady
gave a tree to be planted in Library Park.

Hrr daughter Genevieve Wortman McCorkle today has vivid membries of the
family carriage with rubber tires, deuble seats and shades. In a recent
interview she recalled "early Medford was a very charming place" and that
she had an "ideal girlhood" Her parents would have sit down dinners for
up to 40 of her friends. Fred K. Deuel Jr. (101&) and Norris Porter (1010)
tell of a "club" in the 1920's of the neighborhood boys, including Dick
Applegate (615). They used the then vacant "haunted" house at 800 for a
clubhouse. Many parties for the younger set were recalled by those who

were teenagers in the 20's.

As today, tennis was a popular 1910-1920's recreation with the well to do.

Susan Deuel Robinson remembers playing early morning games with Dr. Ridg.3hsz 455
on a court tetween their 2 homes 1018 and 111k. There were at least four courts

“
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in the two block section between Stewart and Barnett. Her brother Fred
fNeuel recalls courts at the NW corher of Qakdale and Stewart belong{to
Getchells (1121) and slso at the SE cornor of Rarnett and Oakdale. The
Wortman's ($12) had ~ rourt between their house and the Nash House (822).
It seems all the goung people played and were free to use w hichever courts
were free.

In "Recalling a 'f+~gment of time' in the Rogue Valley'" which appeared in

the MEDFOKD MAIL TRIBUNE January 23, 1977, Helen Thompson VonderHellen gave

a vivid glimpse of South Oakdale's social 1life. As a 15 year old governess

for the 6 year old Sonny Patterson in 1914, she lived at 1009. "They employed

a Japanese cookfbutler...entertained at formal dinners, both mea ana women

wore formal attire. The women's gowns were elaborate and they wore jewelry
--real pearls and diamonds and other gems." She remembers the Deuels, Englishs,
Bardwells, and Edison Marehall and some of the dinner guests from South Qakdale .
She alsoc thought the Deuel sisters debutants.and enviously watched their
coming and going to parties.

Englishman Reginald Barker who built 800 is remembered for his stuffy ways.
Nanine Pa*terson of 1009 for her "eastern" ways and using calling cards to
call on her new neighbors. Her husband Stuart loved to race his Pierce Arrow
touring car on Kings Hwy, attaining speeds up to 60 mph, finally killing
himself in it.

Twe Applegate famil& history is varied and influentia! county wide. ‘Many of

this large family lived at 615 at different times, Elizabeth A~plegate

Barry being the third generation and still living there.. The oil stove

still functioning in that house was the 2nd 0il stove in Jackson County.

Alice Applegate Sargent lived at 8§00 when her busband retired, then they

moved on to the Nunan House in Jacksonville. Alice had travelled world wide

with her husband following his military career right into war with him.
Applegates were city and county recorders, builders, story writers and

married into many of the other prominent families. Ra~hel AppYegate Alford

live at 517 W. 1lOth many years until about 1937. Dick Applegate named the .
Medford High the "Black Tornndoes'" when he worked for the MEDFORD MAIL TRIBUNE. '

The "old maid" Kehielor sisters Annie and Katie resided at 1019 from 1910

until 1940. They were known to be Vvery charitable, especially within the

Catholic Church. They sent Jonn Applegate to Mt. Angel College. They donated
_- the large organ to Sacred Heart Church when it was dedicated in 1928.

CPO 822 455
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CHURCH

The Catholic parish moved to Medford from Jackscaville in 1908, a socially
and culturally sighificanlevent for the "new" towa. There had been a small
mission on bth St, but parish headquartered in Jacksonville. In 1908 the
present rectory and small stucco mission style Church of the Nativity south
of it were built in the Wortman Block on South QOalidale between 10th and 1llth
streets. In 1928 the present large brick Rc-manesgue style Sacred Heart
Church was constructed to meet the needs of the fast growing congregation.
The mission church was razed for parking.(One house) that stood on the church
site was moved by Earl Fehl to 511 S. Park, adjacent to the district.

S 9.9aRKC AAaD Tod S, 0AKTALE~ ~ FRAL HoUSE-

The church has been an important influence on the neighborhood, building a
school at 10th and Holly. Traditionally many families have located homes

in the area to be within walxing distance of their church and of the school
for their children. It is still true that the majority of the South Cakdale
children attend 3acred Heart Elementary rather than the public schools.

EDUCATICN

Two of Medford's best remenbered educators lived on South Oakdale, their
influence touching thousands of students. The property at 503 is well known
as the Hedrick House. Although he did not build it, E.H. Hedrick lived
there the 30 years he served as the popular Medford Schools Superintendent
.1925-1955. Hedrick' Jr. High School built in 1655 in east Medford 'is named
for him.

In 1931 the homes on the east side of Bouth Cakdale between Barnett and
Monroe were either moved or razed to make way for the new Senior High
School building. In 1944 Lester Harris came to Medford as principal of
that school. He also in 1944 bought the property of 707 S. Oakdale, just
steps from the school grounds. He continued as a much loved principal

" uptil his death Februmary, 1965.

Alrng with the founding of Medford in 1883, in the summer of 1884 a frame
~chool was built on Oakdale between Main =nd 8th. In 1891 it was moved to
517 W. 10th and turned into a stately residence by A.A. Davis. Today that
early school house is a professional law office. (#0)

GPO 892 453
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LITERATURE

In 1935 Jan Snedicor wrote "Medford has been zmore than fortunate in
numbering among her citizens artists of national reputation. ZEdison Marshal
is the ong great writer...". Born 1894 in Indiana he came to Medford when
his father George bought the J.H. Stewart prorerties. He grew up at 1113,
attended UO 1913-1916, U.S. Army 1918. Married in 1920 he returned to
Medford ‘and bought 1009 in 1922 which he owned until 1930. Fror there he
moved to Georgia for the rest of his life.

His career was long and successful. Upon his death the MEDFORD MAIL TRIBUNE
stated "one of.the most prolific and successful authors in contemporary
America. His first national prominence occurred when he was awarded the

0. Henry Memorial Prize for his short story "The Heart of Little Shikara"

in 1921." Elizsbeth Applegate Barry recalls his coming to her high school
English class at that time to read his award winning story. & hunter, he
made exploring trip= into “laska, Siam, €Gentral Africa, Indo China and
India and "brought stories of a1is coanquests in person as well as fiction

to his Me lford friends."

A few of his 40 some novels written and published between 1922 and his
death were: '"Heart of the Hunter", !'Infinite Worman", "fhe Bengal Tiger",
"Yankee Pasha", "Castle In 'he Swamp and "The Viking" for which the
popular 50's mnvie "The Vi'-ings" was based. His books were the basis of
five. silent movies and four other sound rovies. His novels were also
regularly trenslated into nine European languages. In 1941 the University
of Oregon granted him an honorary masters degree. Unfortunagely he Aied

a year before he .expected to complete an autobiography.

Another outstanding and colorful figure is Dick Apvlegate, son of Frank,
who grew up at 615. He began his reporting career witn the MEDFCRD MAIL
TRIEUNE. In the 20's he went to work for United Press International in
Salem. W#II he was in the Navy, but after again went to work for UZI
covering the Korean iar. e then progressed to become Fureau Chief in
Singanore and Saigon.

As an NBC correspondent in Hong Kong in the early 50's he was heard by
those who knew him here on radio news broadcasts. At that tize he
purchased a pleasure boat and while sailing with friends they sailed

.° into international waters between Hong Kong and China. The boat and
crew vere seized by Chinese “ommunists and held priscaers ia China for
about 18 months. Citizens of Medford during this time gathered thousands
of signatures on petitions and sent them to the Secretary of State
to help secure his release.

When released he came hcme to Medford and a big welcome from the town.
He retired to Madrid, Spdin for a few years, now lives in Eoston.
G0 332 455
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There were other South Oakaale literary connections. Earl Fehl published
his newspaper THE PACIFIC RECOKD HERALD 1919-1933. Alice Applegate Sargent
(800) wrote a paper "The distory of the Rogue River Valley'" and the book
"Following the Flag" about her adventures with her military husband. John
Reddy, son of Dr. Reddy (800) and a contemporary of Dick Applegate left to
eventually become an editor at READER(S DIGEST.

ARTS . . i
TPhe musical artae on S~uth Cakdale were stronzest at the wortman home, 912.
Mra. Wortman w.s from the Gore farily, who were all very musical. Daughter
Genevieve gave piano recitals there, easily seating up to 60 in the living
room. Her father gave her a baby grand pilanc as a birthday present and it
now is in the Madison House lobby (the retireczent hcme in Medford where she
lives). 1In 1944 Mr~. Wortman sold 912 for cash. She wanted the money to
buy a school in Mr. Shasta where she then had a music school. .
MIREWS OPERA (0. FAMLy CoNNECTION / RAFH Boeitess fawdicy (#s5~ ?>
” {:éerman soprano Madame Shuman Heink rented 1009 during WWI, maintaining =
lowprofile professionally, leaving once the war and anti-German feelings
were over.

IN CONCLUSICN

The lives of South Cakdale residents have touched all aspects of life in

the Medford community since its founding days in 1883. There have always

been prominent community figures living on the street, more during the ~
Mearly" years than "mid" years, but always active, Currently as the first ’
nei~hborhood group to actively question city hall procedures in the name

of preservation of an historically valuable area to the_community, South

Oakaale is gaining a new prominence of leadership in Medford.

GPD 892 455
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to the east to follow the west facade of the high school building between
Barnett and Monroe Streets. Continuiig northward the east boundary then
follows the eust edge of tax lots 7600, 7500, 7100, 7000, 6900, 6700, 6300,
6200, 5900, 5600, 5500, and 5300 im an irregular-line. It then turns
west along the north edge of tax lot 5300 to the street. Using S. Oakadale
atreet as the east boundary it follows up to 1lOth street, turns west on

10th continuing to NW corner of Counselor Ct. property lot # 5700, Wortman
Block, turns south on the west edge of that lot, then turns east at the south
edge of that lot, continuing behind the Catholic Church properties, lots
5500, 5600, and 5000 and the weast edge of lot 8200. The boundary continues
in an irregular (unstraight) line on the back or west edge of all lots 100
through 3200 on the west side of South Oakdale between 1lth and Dakota Ave.
At Dakota the boundary jogs to the west to make Dakota the north boundary
for tax lot 300 whose west and south edges are boundaries, then the west
boundary line continues Southward in a more or less straight line behind
lots 8200 through 9100. It -gain jogs to the west on the north edge of

lot 9300 which Park St. is the west boundary for lot 9300, then Belmont

the south edge boundary to mid block of Belmont where the west boundary line
again turns southward continuing in a more or less straight line behind lots
9600-1000 until it connects with Stewart Ave, the southern boundary following
Stewart to the east along the southern edge of 10000 and 8400 to the
beginning point.

GPO 892 453
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Ownership listing follows the order of the map code numbers

6. Counselor's Court Properties
Fred Amundson and Dave Moore
517.West 10th Street
Medford, Oregon 97501

1. & 2. Archdiocise of Portland
c¢/o Sacred Heart Church, Fathe~ Beno
326 S. Oakdale
Medford, Or~gon 97501

3. Dr. and Mrs. L~wrence Buonocofe
510 W. 1lth St.
Medford, Oregon 97501

L, Bruce Stanley and Marlan Morses
LO8 s. Oakdnle
Medford, Oregon 97501

5, Marlan and Rarbara Morse
L3293 Pami Lane
Central Point, Oregon 97502

‘6. Bob Schipper
75 Dean Rd.
Centrnl Point, Oregon 97502 .

7. Harry and Joyce Withrow
1803 Gene Cameron Way
Medford, Oregon 97501

8. Ruth and Albert Schenfisch
234 Alta Vista Rd.
Eagle Point, Oregon 97501

9. Robert and Maecille Mo~s ¢/o Arthur and Thelma Paddleford
400 E~igrant Rd.
. Ashland, Oregon 97520

10, William P. Rose Sr.
6245 Merced Lake Dr.
San Diego, CA. 92119

11. John and Suzanne Jensen
522 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

GPO 892 453
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l2. Da<vid and Judy Grembeuer
608 South Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

13, Darfell and Helen Leaven
"610° S. Oakdale
_Medford, Oregon 97501

14, Georae and Gertrude Holtzinger
616 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

15. Chester E. and Joyce C. Defty
620 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

16, Dwayne and Florence Grimes
77 8. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

17. Gerald and Virginia Bronson
706 S. Oakdale
Medford, Orecgon 97501

- 18, Frederick and Debra Sheppard
" 710 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501 : .

19, Paul and Debra Hogan
714 S, Oadale
Medford, Oregon 97501

20. Richard and Susan Howsley
13011 N.E. 9th Ave.
Vancouver, Washington 98665

21, and 22. Allan and Colette Wright
1113 So. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

23. and 24, William Mansfield .
822 S. Oakdale )
Medford, Oregon 97501

25. Jay Hale c¢/o G.J. Pendleton
900 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 37501 o b9z 458
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26.

27,

28.

29.

30.

31.

.32,

33.

34,

35.

360

o«-.*
Lucille and Maurice J. Griffin
4427 Longridge
Sherman Oakd, CA. 91423 .

Michael and Suzanne Brian

-922* S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

OLis and Nelda Swisher
100? §. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501 .

Thomas.and Sue Hanke
1006 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

Stn~rt and Karen Allan
516 Belmont
Medford, Oregon 97501

Leonard R. and Dorothy E. Hafvny
1010 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregnn 97501

Susan Robiéson; E.P. Vilas, F.K. Deuel Jr. ¢/o F.K. Deuel
P.0. Box 1642 '
Medford, Oregon 97501

John Chaney
1100 S. Oakdale
Meéford, Oregon 97501

William and Elizabeth Haterlach
1108 S. Oaklale '
Medford, Oregon 97501

Eugene and Barbara Westlund
1114 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

Altx-and Patricia McDonald
1120 S. Qakdale '
Medford, Oregon 97501

GPO 892 453
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37. Esther Jensen
1121 S. Oakdale
Melford, Oregon 97501

38, Allan and Colette Wright
: 1113 S. Qakdale
.Medford, Orrgon 97501

39. Claude Jones
1101 S. Oakdale
Mefford, Oregon 97501

"0, Michael ~nd Gena Kin~g
JO19 S. Oakdale
Me’or<, Oregon 97501

hl..Arnold and Helen Depner
- 1813 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

L2, Bruce and Vieki A. Bryden
1009 S. Cakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

‘43, pavis and Patricia Smith
1001 S, Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

44, Don and Roberta McKay
995 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregnan 97501

kS; Herber' Wing'and Danielle Harms
989 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

46. Allen and Nadine Minger
907 S. Oakdlae
Meiford, Oregon 97501

47, School District 549¢, Sutt. Richard Langton
500 Monroe St.
Medford, Oregon 97501

48, Clinton and Bess Archibald
715 §. Nakdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

GPO 892 433
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49, Charles and Carol Gates
707 S. Oakdale
Medford, Oreson 97501
50. Clyde Seterssn and D.L. Gressett
-~ 2817 E. McAndrews Rd. . . ) =
.Medford, Oregon 9$7<01 ) oy

51. Sidney and Lydia Blood ¢/o Thomas and Linda M. Younger
701 S. Oakdale '
Me2®ord, Oregon 97501

52. Howard Helusgson
619 S. Oskdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

53. Elizabeth Apﬁlegate Barry
615 S. Oakdale
MeAford, Oregon 97501

Sk, Alice Leverette c/¢ Jean Reums
4126 Colver Rd.
Medford, Oregon 97501

'S5. Gary Rowden .
1009 Oneida Circle ;
Ashland, Oregon 97520 :

56. Frank Servoss, E.Bostwick, G. Foster N
P.0.Box 1047
Medford, Oreson 97501

R

57, Ruth E. Wafnér . . . -.
511 S. O~kdale
Medford, Oregon 97501

R

58. Don~1d and Polly Smith
07 8. Oakdale
: edford, Oregon 97501

59. Venita D. Jack

583 S. Oakdale
Mgdford, Oregon 97501

GPO 832 453



